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for media reporting. And that was usually about

an hour, 90 minutes before the press conference

itself.

Q And those wire services typically

disseminated articles concerning Shell's results

worldwide, correct?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form; lack of

foundation.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Withdrawn. Do you -- are you familiar

with the scope of -- withdrawn. Let me try this

again. Did the wire services periodically or

typically write articles concerning the results

announced by Shell?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: They always, we hoped,

wrote an article about the quarterly results and

the performanc¤ of the company.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q As part of your market monitoring

acti vities as head of I,R, did you review those

articles?

.A '.Not al.Lof them, but; I would typically
. .

follow Bloomberg's and 9ther news s~rvic.~s'~hat
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were notified to me as having carrying a

particularly interesting article.

Q Are you aware of whether those articles

were disseminated globally over the wire at the

same time?

A I guess I was only following them from

the U.K., and so it would be an assumption from me

that they would be available globally by whatever

mechanism the wire services would use. I was only

personally following them in the U.K.

Q Now, with regard to the press

Page 51
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conferences that were conducted concerning the

QRAs, you indicated that members of the financial

media attended those conferences. Who determined

who to invite to those conferences?

A The team reporting to Mary J6 Jacobi.

Q Could you please describe the format of

those con£erences for me.

A Just to be clear, we're talking about

the press conferences, not the inv~stor or the

analyst conferences, which were a quite separate

event?

Q That's correct.

A I guess if it were U.K.-based, we would
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have somewhere between 20 and 30 journalists. We

would either rent a room in a London hotel or

other conference venture or invite the journalists

to Shell Center, the head office in London. Phil

or Judy would start with their 10-, IS-minute

presentation on the results. It would have

somewhere between seven and ten slides, simple

description or explanation of the results,

followed by an open Q&A. There would usually be a

telephone call-in option, such that journalists

who could not attend physically could also listen

and also ask questions, and the whole event would

last for maybe an hour.

Q Now, with regard to the presentation on

Page 52

the results, I take it that -- withdrawn. Did

Mr. Watts and Ms. Boynton utilize prepared

statements during that portion of the

presentation?

A Yes, they did.

Q Who was responsible for dra£ting those

prepared statements?

A Ultimaterespon,sibility for the pres~

statements would. be with Mary.Jb, but in fact,

they were extracts fibm, although'very similar to,
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the statements that would be used by either Sir

Philip or Judy or myself in investor

communications, so it was basically one

preparation process, and Mary Jo's team would --

"dumb down" would be maybe the wrong word, but

they would make it more understandable to

journalists relative to the investors who are

shall we say more liberate in their interests.

MR. FERRARA: Tim, we've been going for

a little more than an hour. Would it be

convenient to take a brief break?

MR. MACFALL: If I could just finish up

with a.cQuple more questions .

MR. FERRARA: Sure.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Do you recall if journalists from the

financial media in the United States typically

attended the QRA or the Quarterly Result press

conferences?

A Almost never, ..because they were held at

9~OO in the morning, and that was 4:00 a~m. in New

York. What we did.have is the Bl)yeau

representative usually from the "Wall Street

Page 53
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as based in London. I don't recall too many

others. "New York Times" was occasionally

represented.

Q Now, when you say "represented," do you

mean that those individuals were physically

present at the press conference?

A Or they would call in. They were always

invited, but they didn't always attend.

Q Now, just for clarification, because I

was actually asking specifically with regard to

physical attendance at the conferences, but you

may have answered this: Do you recall if members

of the financial media in the U~ited States

typically participated by telephone in those press

conferences?

A Journalists based in the United States,

almost never, from my memory. I don't even

remember, because it wasn't my invitation list.

If we would bother to invite them, we would just

invite the London Bureau because of the time and

distance.

MR. MACFALL : Why don' twe go off t.he

record .

THEVIDEOGRAPHER: We're going 6ff the
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record. The time is 11:16 a.m.

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken.)

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the

record. The time is 11:42 a.m.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Mr. Henry, prior to the break we were

talking about the press conferences that were held

in conjunction with the QRAs. I believe you

stated that members of the financial media from

the United States were invited but with certain

exceptions which you specified usually did not

attend. I'd like to ask: Do you recall

specifically which members of the United States

financial media were invited to those press

conferences?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form and

f oundat.d on .

THE WITNESS: To the best of my

knowledge, it would be the London-based Bureau of

Representatives of the "Wall Street Journal," the

"New York Times." And just to be clear, the same

was true about the wire services. It was the

London representatives. All reports that came out

foLlowing any of the discussions, quarterly
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results or otherwise, would come from the London

office; for example, Bloomberg. We never, in my

experience, spoke to U.S.-based journalists or

financial media.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Are you aware if representatives from

"Investors Business Daily" was invited to the

press conference?

A No.

Page 56

Q No, you're not aware or no, they were

not invited?

A I'm not aware.

Q And I believe you, uh, you mentioned

Bloomberg. That would have been the London

representative of Bloomberg, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. How about Thompson's; do you

recall if anybody from ThompsonLs ~as normally

invited?

A I don't recall if Thompson's .were.

invited. The only relationship I had with

'rhompson.i"sthat I was aware of .was, in fact, the

sha reho lde r infotmcltion: that they started to

gather: for us during 2002,.
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2 Q Are you aware if a representative of

Reuters was invited to the press conferences?

A I can't say specifically, but typically

we would invite them to the teleconference that

would be held before the press conference, and

that's the only time I would expect to talk to

them.

Q Just so I understand you, so a

representative of Reuters was, to the best of your

recollection, invited to participate in the

teleconference which occurred prior to the press

release; is that correct? I'm sorry. Prior to

the press conference regarding the QRA.

A The London-based representatives of

Reuters would be invited to join the

teleconference that would be held maybe half an

hour after the Stock Exchange Release, which was

7:30 U.K., 2:30 a.m. New York, and one hour later

for Continental Europe, the call being held at

that time so that it \'Jas before the markets opened

in Europe.

Q How about "Bµsiness Week"; do you recall

if a repr¤sentative from tbat Drgani~ation was

invited to the press conference?'

-
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A I never came across a "Business Week"

representative based in Europe, sir. Let's be

clear. Journalists don't get up at 2:30 in the

morning. It's simple as that.

Q How about "Forbes"?

A "Forbes," no.

Q "Fortune"?

A No.

Q NOW, with regard to the representatives

from organizations based in the United States,

such as the "Wall Street Journal" and "New York

Times" and Bloomberg, why were such

representatives invited to participate in the

teleconference and/or press conference?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form and

foundation.

THE WITNESS: My understanding, bearing

in mind I always had Investor Relations, nQt Media

Relations, was that the "Wall Street Journal" in

particular has a European version and has a

reporting responsibility into Europe, impacting

the European media. The financial media impacts

ultimately European investors. It.was also a more

efficient way of communicating back into the U.s.
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market on the assumption that the journalists

would file copy that was available to the "Wall

Street Journal" when it came online in the U.S.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q What about the "New York Times"?

A The "New York Times" was a less

important pUblication for us, to be honest, as far

as we were concerned, so I don't remember -- it

didn't have a European edition. The "New York

Times," one of the reasons it was less important

for us is it doesn't or, as far as I was aware,

didn't have a European edition.

Q Do you know why a representative of the

"New York Times" was invited to participate or to

attend the press conference?

A No.

Q Who was it who made the decision --

withdrawn. Who was it who drew up the list of

invitees to the press conference?

MR. SMITfi: Objection to form and

foundation.

THE WITNESS: It would have been drawn

up.by a member of the team, Mary Jo Jacobi's team .
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BY MR. MACFALL:

Q With respect to Ms. Jacobi's team, I

believe you indicated that they were responsible

for Media Relations; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Do you know if that team was organized

in the same way Investor Relations was? And by

that I mean by geographic regional market.

A In my time in Investor Relations, the

organization changed more than once, and at one

point we had a U.S. media representative sharing

the New York office with David Sexton, but by and

large the U.S. media activity was considerably

les~ than the Europe.

Q Do you recall the name of the individual

who sh~red the office with Mr. Sexton?

A Michael McGary.

Q Now, with respect to the teleconferences

that were conducted after the final of the QRA but

before the press conference, who ~as

responsible -- withdrawn. Were representatives of

various financial media invited to participate?

A Sorry.' Were' representatives --

Q Yes .
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A Yes.

Q Who determined who was invited to

participate in the teleconferences?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form and

foundation.

THE WITNESS: The ultimate

responsibility would be Mary Jo Jacobi.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Did investor relations have any input

into the list of invitees or participants?

A Not that I can recall .

Q I know you identified Bloomberg as one

wire service that normally participated in the

teleconference. Can you identify any other

specific wire services that participated during

those teleconferences during your tenure at IR?

A Reuters and AFP were two -- I'm not sure

if it's a wire service, btit it's a London-based

information service Called "Breaking Views:" And

I don't recall other what I would see as wire

services.

Q Did you participate in those

teleconferences?. ." . . r ..

A Yes.
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Q What was your role in those conferences?

A My initial role was in preparing any

briefing for the executives who would actually

host the conference, including they usually began

with a two-, three-minute description of the

highlights of the results, so I would be part of

drafting those highlights. Then I would be

present in the call only if one of the presenters

needed support and typically on facts and numbers

for the questions that were coming in, and more

often than not I did not actually speak in the

call. It was only by exception that I would

speak.

Q I know you -- excuse me. Withdrawn.

You previously indicated that certain of the press

conferences conducted out of The Hague were

conducted in Dutch. Were the teleconferences

conducted in English or Dutch?

A In London, in English. In the

N¤therlands it would be a mix, essentially,

because sometimes you have English-speaking

journalists or not Dutch-speaking. German

journalists, for example, may not speak 'Outcll, so
, . .. .

they.tended to be a combination.
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I'm not familiar with what went on in those press

confe~ences, because I was usually attending the

London-based conference.

Q And just so I'm clear, the

teleconferences that preceded the actual press

conference, were those normally conducted out of

London?

A Always conducted out of London.

Q I believe you stated earlier that

Mr. Watts and Ms. Boynton spoke during these

conferences on various occasions; is that correct?

A Yeah, typically one of them would do

their three-minute introduction, and if both were

present -- sometimes only one was present they

Page 63

would choose between themselves who would answer a

particular question.

a Besides telephonically, was the

teleconferehce broadcast or disSeminated in any

ot her way?

A The teleconference waS no~ bro~dcast.

a- How about the press conference?

A The pre~s confe~ence was typically

broad~~st-onth~ website, bu~ not ~lw~ys: I

f orqet how the strategy evolved. During the
,_
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period when I arrived, it was not. During the

period we started to webcast some of the press

conferences. This is partly as technology

evolved.

Q In or about 2003, 2004, were the press

conferences ordinarily webcast?

A I don't recall exactly, but I would

think, based on the way things developed, most of

them would have been webcast in that period.

Q I believe you indicated that the

prepared statements -- withdrawn. I believe you

indicated that Mr. Watts and Ms. Boynton during

the teleconferences utilized prepared statements,

correct?

A That's correct.

Q And those prepared statements were

extrapolated or distilled from the narrative

portion of the QRAs; is that correct?

.A Distilled from the narrative in the QRA,

but they would typically repeat the key figures,

such as the income p!oduction.

Q Now, during the preparation of the

narrative portions pfthe QRA, was it necessary

for Investor Relation.s to obtain da.tafrom 'the
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operating Businesses?

A Yes, it was.

Q Were there specific focal points or

representatives or individuals -- let me try that

again. Withdrawn. Were there specific

representatives designated at each of those

Businesses to act as a conduit of information for

Investor Relations?

A Yes, there were.

Q Could you please identify with respect

to each of the Businesses, to the best of your

recollection, who each of those individuals were.

A In the Exploration & Production Business

for most of my time in Investor Relations it was a

lady called Rhea Hamilton. That's Rhea, R-H-E-A.

In the Do~nstream or Oil Products Business it was

an individual called Malcolm Spratt. In the Gas

and Power Business it was a variety of

individu~ls. It changed during the period, and

similarly in Chemicals, but most of our

communication was with E&P and Oil Products, as

they are the largest, uh, largest Businesses and

ihe ones of most interest.

Q And when you say "the ones ~f fuost
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interest," are you referring to interest by the

financial community?

A They had the most material impact on the

financial results, so if we were looking to

explain the financial results, that is where we

would start.

Q Do you recall what position Ms. Hamilton

held at EP?

A Apart from being the focal point of

Investor Relations, which was one of her roles,

she was part of the Finance Team that was

responsible for preparing various information

reports, planning within the EP Business.

Q How about Mr. Spratt?

A He was in a similar unit in the Oil

Products Business.

Q Just a moment ago I believe you used the

term "Upstream." Just to backtrack for purposes

of clarification, could you please describe for me

the. difference between "Ups t ream" and

"Downstream."

A The Ups~ream Businesses are $ssentially

a resource and extrt:iction and production Business

and include Oil and Gas up to the point at wh~Ch
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that oil or gas is placed on a ship for transport

to market. The Downstream Business is typically

receipt of the ship into a distribution

infrastructure, maybe on with manufacturing

processing and sale to final customer.

Different oil companies might draw the

specific line between Upstream and Downstream

differently. Shell includes two Businesses in its

Upstream: The Exploration & Production and what

we call Gas and Power. Gas and Power is

responsible for the Liquefied Natural Gas or LNG

Supply Business, which includes liquefaction and

transport and ultimate sale into gas markets.

Some Companies do not have that distinction. They

just have an Upstream Business. Depends on the

way they ~ctually manage their own business.

Q I'd like to go back and just follow up

with something we discussed a little bit earlier.

You indicated you could recall specifically during

the QRA process or final approval process Cit least

one instance where the Board Conference commen t ed

on the draft QRA.. Do you recall who it was who

provided you with that comment?

A I rec~ll how the comment reaChed me,
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which was obviously from my Line Manager who would

have been present in the meeting, which was Judy

Boynton.

Q I believe you also indicated that the

Board wanted to quantify production targets; is

that correct?

A What the Board was asking specifically

was that the targets that they had effectively

just been approving in the Business Plan were

communicated to the outside world. As proposed by

the business for internal management and appraisal

purposes, they wished to share the specific number

with the outside world.

Q Do you know why they wanted to share

that number with the outside world?

A No, I don't.

Q Did you have any discussion with

Ms. Boynton concerning her participation in the

CMD meeting at which that was discussed -- I'm

sorry ~- at the conference meeting at which that

was discussed?

A No, I didn't, not really.

Q Now, going back again to the apprOxilr\ate

breakdown of investors in the Uriit~d S:tatesversus
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Europe and the U.K., I believe you stated that

prior to the exclusion of Shell from the S&P 500,

that U.S. investors made up approximately

25 percent of the investors in Shell; is that

correct?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: What I said was that was

our understanding in Investor Relations at the

time, based on somewhat incomplete information,

incomplete because we hadn't at that stage started

the regular monthly information that we

subsequently gathered from Thompson's, and

incomplete because bearer shares we could not

identify, and so -- however we did it, so it was

based on our estimate at the time, not so much

where the shares were traded, but where the

holders might sit, but it was exactly that: Only

an estimate.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Do you recall if that estimate irrcluded

u~s. purthasers ~r U.S. holders who purchased on

foreign markets?

MR. SMITH: O}:)jectiOn to for::mand

foundation.
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THE WITNESS: I don't recall specific

numbers, but it would have potentially included

investors of the kind that you mentioned.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q I believe you indicated that Shell

instituted a more formalized process to gauge the

number of U.S. holders vis-a-vis Europe~n holders

and U.K. holders; is that correct?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: It's correct that we

initiated a process during my tenure .

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Was that in connection with the Standard

& Poore 500 exclusion of Shell?

A Not exclusively. I don't know the exact

timing, but it was around about the same time.

Q Could you explain to me why it was that

a process was' put in place to identify the number

of U.S. holders versus European holders.

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS': The process wasn't put in

place, in the first place; just to know U.S.

versus European. I was' head' of what was

effectively a marketi(lg activity, and it :helped in
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any marketing activity to know where your

customers were, so it was basically market

intelligence for me to develop a communication

strategy around, particularly bearing in mind, of

course, we knew the size of the market through a

daily web and how much potential capital there

was.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Now, prior to the time that that process

was instituted going back to the initial estimate

concerning U.S. holders, do you recall what

information that was based upon?

A Not entirely, but it was partly what

shares were traded on which exchange, so we knew

which ones were held and the ADRs were held, ST&T,

for example, or the New York ordinary shares of

our overall Dutch. And it was partly based on

what I believe had been previous one-off surveys

that had been done by ~y predecessor in Investor

Relations~ Michael Harrop, for example, was in

the role I mentioned for ·five years in total, so I

think he began in 1997, so he had quite some.

experience in the role .

Q I~fus6rry. I believe,you us~d the t~r~

"---"_--"-.":
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"one-off survey"; is that correct? Could you

please describe for me what that is.

A With Thompson's we asked them to do

every month a survey of where the holders were and

who were the big buyers and sellers, so I'd say

that was an ongoing survey. A one-off survey is

just a point in time snapshot where we were

asking -- the one we did in my tenure was with

Taylor Rafferty, a snapshot at that time of the

Royal Dutch shareholders, who was a holder at any

given date, and we didn't institute a monthly

process afterwards.

Q NOW, the Taylor Rafferty survey, was

that commissioned for the same reason that you

described; basically market surveillance and

intelligence?

A Yes.

MR. SMITH: Objection to the form.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Do you recall approximately when that

was done?

A I think that was in 2001, but I could be

wrong. CoUld have been later, in 2002 .

Q W<;IS that survey something that you
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requested?

A It was something that I requested.

Page 73

Q Now, the Thompson surveys; were they

done on a monthly basis?

A Yes, they are, once we had initiated the

contract.

Q Were the Thompson surveys something that

you requested that they be done?

A Yes, they were.

Q Was the data from either the Taylor

Rafferty surveyor the various Thompson surveys

ever provided to members of senior management at

Shell?

A Yes, it was.

Q Now, with respect to the Taylor Rafferty

survey specifically, do you recall if that data

was provided to Shell senior management?

A I don't recall if the specific data was

provided, but some of the conclusions that W'e drew

from it about particularly European investors were

provided to management.

Q Do you recall what those conclusions

were?

A That our European -- this is continental
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European, excluding the U.K. -- that our

shareholders were much more broadly spread amongst

European countries than had previously been

thought, and that the Netherlands itself was just

one of four countries with roughly equal

shareholders.

Q Who specifically in senior management

was provided with that information?

A Would have been Judy.

Q 00 you recall how that was provided to

Ms. Boynton? Was that an oral presentation or a

written report?

A Most likely an oral presentation, maybe

with one or two extracts from the report, but

that's typically how we communicated, so I can't

say specifically for that information.

Q As a general matter, did you normally

12:12:20 20

12:12:17 19. I communicate with Ms. Boynton on a f ace=t o+f ace

basis versus telephonically, for example?

12:12:2421

12:12:2622

12:12:28 23

12:12:28 24

• 2:3125

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: Mostly face to face.

BY MR. MACFALL:

.Q. Was Ms. Boynton's office physically

rocated near your office?
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A Yes, it was.

Q With respect to the information from the

Thompson surveys, was data from those surveys

provided to senior management at Shell?

A Yes, it was.

Q Okay. Do you recall the subject matter

of ,the data that was provided to the Shell senior

management from those surveys?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: I recall two different

ways in which we used to share the data. One was,

if we took the senior executive on a road trip to

meet with investors, we would typically give a

listing of the key investors in that market and

highlight where the investors were that the

executive was meeting, where they were on that

list, and what their recent activity would have

been, whether they were a buyer or a seller.

Separate to that, we did a Quarterly Report

showing trends in terms of buyers and sellers and

movements, and that utilized the Thompson data.

And that ;report was sent, if I recall correct,ly,

to the CMD, So all of the Managing Directors and

to one or two other key contacts, which would have
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included Mary Jo Jacobi and I think would have

included the head of Planning, Planning &

Strategy.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Who was the head of Planning & Strategy

at that time?

A A variety when I began.

MR. SMITH: Maybe we could be clearer

about what the time frame is. Do you mean at the

time he started getting the Thompson data?

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Yes, specifically.

A The Thompson data I think by then was a

lady called Lynn Elsenhaus.

Q Do you recall Ms. Elsenhaus' title at

the time?

A "Director of Group Strategy and Planning

and External Affairs," or something similar.

Q Separate and apart from providing data

from the Thompson surveys, did Investor Relations

have interaction with Ms. Elsenhaus ~- I'm

sorry.:..-with the Director of Group StratlZgy &

Planning?

T. myself had interaction with whoever
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was in that position throughout the three plus

years I was in the role. Not really -- the rest

of my team didn't, really.

Q What was the nature of your interaction?

A During a given year we follow a typical

process for planning whereby early in the year we

would conduct a strategy review of competitive

positioning, a look at whether the appraisal of

the performance of the Business as to whether it

was delivering against the stated strategy. That

would then feed into the guidelines for the

current year planning process, which would then

feed into the preparation of the plan, which was

signed off by the end of the year.

Lynn or whoever was .in that role was

responsible for that whole process, but from an

Investor Relations perspective I would contribute

to the competitive positioning to the changes in

the ind~stry environment. And as the plan w~s

being prepared in the latter part of the year, I

would have a role in terms of commenting on the

quality of the -- again from a competitive

positioning against both what we expected from

competitors, like BP and Exxon, anci what we
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believed the market expected from Shell, so I was

giving feedback from market expectations.

Q What was the purpose of that report?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: There wouldn't necessarily

be a particular report. I could be included in a

discussion. I might sometimes do a written

comment or an e-mail. And the first phase, the

competitive positioning, we would typically

provide something from Investor Relations about,

again as I mentioned I think some time ago, how

our performance w~~ perceived in the market both

against expectations for Shell and how were the

companies performing. Quite often we would put

that in writing.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Was this for ultimate use in a Planning

& Strategy review? Was that a formalized report?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: This was a CMD.,,-managed

process. I wa~n't party to all the CMD

discussions. I wCis a contributor 'to the

documents, but typica.l.IY--' I arn aware that the

early part of theyeat·there was a review of the
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competitive positioning industry developments that

would be considered by the CMD, which is the

Committee of Managing Directors, as they set

guidelines for the planning process of that year,

which may include, for example, investment levels,

and then beginning September, late September,

there would be a series of reviews at the CMD of

the plan as it was evolving against those

guidelines, and quite often I may comment on that

process as it evolved, usually with Judy more so

than with the Planning Director .

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q How were your comments communicated to

Ms. Boynton? '

A Either bye-mail or verbally or, as was

previously mentioned, usually just by calling

around.

Q Now, with regard to the market

expectation issues in connection with that

planning process, what were your sources o£

information?

MR. SMITH: Objection to fOJ;'m.

'I'HE.WITNESS: I had multiple sources of
information .in puttiIlg that together. It included
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statements made by the competitors, presentations

they had made to the investors. It included

reports done by research analysts and typically

associated with an investment bank, and it

included just about every source of -- every

source of information we could access who may have

a view or opinion on the facts pertaining to the

performance of other companies, and this included

Shell staff who worked with them or in a similar

Business area; it included potentially suppliers

or customers; and it would include the media. We

built up our sources of information as well as

possible as any company would do about their

competitors, but we had, uh, we had a particular

perspective. We were one of several contributors

to that competitive positioning review. Our

perspective was primarily wha.t did the market

think of each company's strengths and weaknesses.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Do you recall i;4gOACE was ever

in connection with Shell's competitive

in connection with .this Planning &

review.process?

A In which period?
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Q During your tenure at Investor

Relations.

A In the earlier years of the tenure, yes.

Q And by that do you mean 2001, 2002?

A Yes.

Q Did that change at some point?

A The relative emphasis changed.

Q Was there some other metric --

withdrawn. Was Shell's Reserve Replacement Ratio

discussed during this process?

MR. SMITH: Can we have a time frame?

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Sure. During your tenure at IR.

A When I first joined IR, the key issues

the market was interested in were two things,

really: Return On Average Capital Employed and

production growth. The issue of Reserve

Replacement Ratio was never mentioned by any

investor to me for about I would say the first ~6

months, because it just was not in the mindset of

any investor at that point in time. So I don't

recall specifically if Reserve Replacement Ratio

was included in the strategy and planning

discussions earlier in the process, but if it was,
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it would have been as more of an aside or a minor

issue. Key issues were production growth and

return on capital.

Q Did there come a time when reserve

replacement became more prominent in the Planning

& Strategy review process?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: From my perspective, it

would have become more important in the market

from around 2002 onwards, driven I mentioned

earlier the BP/Shell thing in the market. BP

fundamentally had a different reputation for

communicating into the market than Shell, one,

based on a much greater resource in time and

effort given to communications than Shell, and a

reputation for, if you like, setting the

communication agenda.

BP had set the production 9rowth agenda

in 2002. I think you'll find from the record that

they issued four statements reducing the

production expectation for the year, thereby

meaning that they had to shift the agenda .that the

'rne.rke t talked about, because they were .a.Lso

,falling behind. on return on capital, particularly
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compared to Shell and Exxon, so the two things

that they had put into the public domain as being

the key metrics that the market should focus on,

they were losing out on. They were not delivering

the production.

Therefore, sometime earlier in 2002,

just as an indication, they fired the head of

Investor Relations and brought in a new guy from

the City, effectively, to readjust their

communications agenda while they were developing

their Russian deal. Clearly -- which was not

known in the market at the time, the Russian deal.

Clearly, they were not going to be successful

in -- production growth and ROACE were the k~y

parameters, so BP moved the conversation away from

production growth and toward reserves, because

they saw that as a competitive strength for them

relative to the other players in the market, and

from that point in time, the U.K. market, because

of the very strong influence of BP, had moved to a

consideration of reserves as being the more

important par,;:lmeterthan it previou$ly had been.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Was the Reserves Replacement'Ri::ltio
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discussed in the U.S. markets?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form. Time

frame?

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Early 2002 onward to the end of your

tenure at IR.

A To be clear, not in the first 15 months,

I don't recall really any discussion on Reserve

Replacement Ratio with any investors until 2002

time frame. Of note, shall I say. I talked to

investors about hundreds of things, but it was

never a major issue. From 2002 onwards, it became

more of an issue with investors around the world,

but it was initially the U.K. because of BP

driving the agenda, and I would say the U.S.

caught up as the 20.02 -- because it was not

something we reported quarterly. It was reported

only once per year, so once the 20.02 figures were

reported in January/February 2.00.3, the U. S. market

was taking an interest as well.

MR. MACFALL: Why don't we go off the

record.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This marks the end of

Tape 1 in the depo s.i.tLcn 0;[ Mr. H~hry. We are
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going off the record. The time is 12:21 p.m.

(Whereupon, the lunch recess was taken.)

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This marks the

beginning of Tape 2 in the deposition of

Mr. Henry. We are back on the record. The time

is 1;24 p.m.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Henry.

A Good afternoon.

Q I'd like to now go back to the press

conferences that were conducted in conjunction

with the QRAs. I believe you indicated that

certain o£ those press conferences were webcast;

is that correct?

A Yes, I did.

Q Are you aware if that webcast or if

those webcasts were available worldwide?

A As far as I'm aware, they were available

worldwide.

Q Do you know if; those webcasts ~ere made

available for a specific period of time? In other

words, were tl"leyavailable for a certain 'amount of

tim!: versus just being covered live and then no

longer available?
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A I don't recall for the press

conferences. It wasn't my area. Remember?

Q Just to go back and follow up on some of

the issues we discussed this morning, I believe

you indicated that as a result of some of the work

done by Thompson's, Shell discerned that there

were four countries in Continental Europe with

approximately equal ownership interest in Shell;

is that correct?

A That's correct.

MR. SMITH: Objection to form .

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q In addition to -- withdrawn. Was the

Netherlands one of those countries?

A The Netherlands was one of those

countries.

Q Could you identify the other three for

01:25:5320

01:25:52 19 I me, please.

01:26:07 21

01:26:08 22

01:26:11 23

01:26:13 24

. • 0:16.25

A Switzerland, France and Germany.

Q Do yoU recall if the proportion of

ownership in Shell was approximately the same for

each of those four countries?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form·.

.THE WITNESS: 'I'othe best of my
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knowledge, as I remember it, for each country the

proportion varied between five and ten percent

over time, so sometimes one country would be

larger; another time a different country would be

larger.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Now, you previously testified concerning

the approximate level of ownership in the United

States. Do you recall -- and again the time

period is 2001 through 2004 -- the approximate

level of ownership in the U.K.?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form and

foundation. That's not his testimony.

MR. MACFALL: Withdrawn. I'll rephrase.

MR. FERRARA: If you're rephrasing, when

you're talking about "ownership," if we could get

some sense of what you mean by that.

MR. MACFALL: Sure.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Were any studies conduct¤d or
/

commissioned by Investor Relations on behaLf 'of

Shell which co.ncluded that there was an equity --

withdrawn. Did the Thompson studies commissioned

by Shell analyze whether Shell shares or Royal

--
:LEGALINK· .A' MERRILL' LEGAL SOLUTIONS
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Dutch/Shell shares were held by investors in the

United Kingdom?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form. Both

companies? "Royal Dutch/Shell" is a little bit

ambiguous.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Let's start with Shell and then come to

Royal Dutch.

A The data provided by Thompson's for the

identify nominee shareholders, not the ultimate

beneficial owner. Thompson's is used to -- aimed

to look behind the nominee, and they would

identify the holder to the best of their ability.

When we looked at the holder from an Investor

Relations perspective, we were aware that some

people from outside the U.K. ~ay well be holding

Shell Transport and Trading ~hares in the U.K.

There were no Royal Dutch shares held in

the U.K. of substance. It was a v,ery small

number. They were not typically traded in the

.our' focus was U.K. holders holding the

Shell Transport and Trading share on the London
. .

market, we rea:lized SOme U.K.-based shareholders'
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would hold Royal Dutch shares on the Amsterdam

market as well, so it was a relatively complex

picture, and when we were our mindset was where

is the ultimate beneficiary, if not necessarily

the ultimate shareholder, uh, decision-maker. So

we were looking for where is the economic benefit,

the dividend flow, and where is the

decision-maker.

THE REPORTER: Where is the economic

benefit and what?

THE WITNESS: Dividend, the dividends or

the ultimate sale of the share. So it's overall

an inexact science, and we had many issues where

we would see a shareholder and -- to take an

example, Merrill Lynch would own some shares

potentially in the U.S. through the New York Stock

Exchange, and Merrill Lynch Investment Management

would own Shell Transport and Trading shares

through the U.K. Exchange through their U.K.-based

subsidiary. So when we were looking from our

perspective, how much is held in U.S., we would

when I say "estimate," it generally is an estimate

of whether ultimately, say, a Merrill Lynch

subsidiary in the U.K., whether that would camp
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for us under, broadly speaking, U.S. or, broadly

speaking, U.K. When I was talking the 25 number

from our perspective, we were including that

particular example in the U.S. Even though it was

a U.K.-based subsidiary holding, the U.K. share's

on the London Exchange. It's a fairly complex

situation, but our aim ultimately was to find out

who the decision-makers were. Simple as that. I

imagine it matters where they were held.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Were you able to quantify the estimate

with regard to the decision-makers of the Shell

Transport shares held in the U.K.?

A It was always a significant percentage,

not which we could quantify. It would always be

over 50 percent.

Q I believe you previously stated that at

some point during your tenure at IR there was

ef£orts concerning ownership of Shell by investors

in Japan; is that correct?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE'WITNESS: It's corre~t that I said

we did from time to time talk to JapanesR

.1: 5725.. I investors,..including two visits.to.Tokyo.

LEGAL INK , A MERRILL LEGAL SOLUTIONS
(800) 325-3.376 wWw.Leqalink.com

Page 90

http://wWw.Leqalink.com


Case 3 :04-cv-0037 4-JAP-JJ H

.:32:01

1

2

01:32:07 3

01:32:08 4

01:32:09 5

01:32:12 6

01:32:13 7

01:32:18 8

01:32:28 9

01:32:30 10

01:32:3411

01:32:49 12

.32:54 13

01:33:01 14

01:33:05 15

01:33:09 16

01:33:11 17

01:33:12 18

01:33:15 19

01:33:1620

01:33:18 21

01:33:20 22

01:33:23 23

01:33:25 24

.3;27 25

Document 437 Filed 10/15/2007 Page 36 of 59

Page 91

SIMON HENRY, October 16th, 2006

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Who was responsible for speaking to

Japanese investors on behalf of Shell?

A I was ultimately responsible, and I did

one of the trips to Tokyo. In terms of my three

direct reports, Gerard Paulides, the London-based

individual, was most directly involved, because we

used Japanese brokers who were based in London, so

the contact was all through London.

Q After the Thompson reports were

commissioned by Shell, was Shell able to ascertain

the percentage, the approximate percentage of

ownership by U.S. investors who purchased on

foreign markets?

MR. SMITH: When you say "Shell," are

you focusing still on Shell Transport and Trading?

MR. MACFALL: I am.

MR. SMITH: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: The only market that wo~ld .

have purchasea them would ha~e been LondOn,

because that was the only market in which any

significant number pf Shell Trans~ort arid Trading

shares ~ere actualiy t~aded. We could,tell ~~

~GAI.INK, A MERRILL .LEGAL SOLUT:rONS'
(800) 325-3376 lnIW. l:oeqalj,.nk. com



Case 3 :04-cv-0037 4-JAP-JJ H

1

.:33:30 2

01:33:35 3

01:33:40 4

01:33:43 5

01:33:51 6

01:33:53 7

01:33:59 8

01:34:01 9

01:34:04 10

01:34:08 11

01:34:15 12

.34:18 13

01:34:23 14

01:34:26 15

01:34:29 16

01:34:34 17

01:34:34 18

01:34:35 19

01:34:3920

01:34:4321

01: 34: 46 22

01:34:47 23

01:34:5024

.4:52 25

Document 437 Filed 10/15/2007 Page 37 of 59

Page 92

SIMON' HENRY, October 16th, 2006

inasmuch as you can look through the nominee to

the beneficial holder, we could tell which holders

might be U.S.-based, such as Merrill Lynch, such

as say Capital Group or Fidelity, and of those

names, the ultimate holder, probably, the ultimate

holder of the company that was investing would be

in the U.S. The company that was investing was

typically a U.K.-based subsidiary, Fidelity U.K.,

Merrill Lynch U.K., Goldman Sachs U.K., Goldman

Sachs Asset Management U.K. Quite a few of these

institutions that you would see as being U.S.-

domiciled but acting in the London or European

market and in the world's multinational, so they

were not American citizens typically we were

dealing with.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Do you recall if the level of ownership

by U.S. investors who purchased in foreign markets

was quantified during your tenure at IR?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: I don't I doni t recall.

Looking at it specifically, a lot of the data was

available to make an est;imat~ based on being. able

tp look t:hrOtlghthe nomj_nees, but it's not
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something we looked at and said, "That's the

number we want to aggregate and track."

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Specifically with respect to the

Thompson reports, in addition to that particular

metric or measurement, do you recall what other

measures or metrics were reported?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: We were interested in the

major buyers and sellers. We were interested in

the level of concentration in terms of the big

shareholders, how many were there, the top ten

holding in each market, Europe, U.K., the U.S.

But primarily this was, for us, a driver of to

whom should we talk. It's about marketing. Which

01:36:20 23

01:36:17 22, I people who had not been active in the stock but

01:36:27 24

.6:31.25

who might be, and aim to visit with the investors

like that. II that was our f ocu's, we were riot-, '. _-, . - - '. .

particularly concerned with over~ll metrics'of tbe

.LEGALlN'I<, 'A MERR~LL LE~ SOLUTIONS
(800) 325-3376 www.~galirik.com



Case 3 :04-cv-00374-JAP-JJ H

1

.:36:34 2

01:36:41 3

01:36:42 4

01:36:42 5

01:36:48 6

01:36:51 7

01:36:55 8

01:36:58 9

01:37:03 10

01:37:05 11

01:37:08 12

• 37:10 13

01:37:10 14

01:37:13 15

01:37:15 16

01:37:17 17

01:37:18 18

Document 437 Filed 10/15/2007 Page 39 of 59

SIMON HENRY, October 16th, 2006

kind that you are probing about. That wasn't the

purpose.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Do you recall -- withdrawn. Did the

Thompson reports indicate who were the largest

shareholders in Shell during your tenure at IR?

A Yes, they did, or at least inasmuch as

they could be identified. Bearer shares, for

example, we could not identify.

MR. SMITH: I think his question was

still Shell .

THE WITNESS: Oh, Shell Transport and

Trading, yes, I believe they did, because the

largest shareholders wouldn't necessarily use a

nominee.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Can you identify any of those

01:37:2420

01:37:19 19 t shareholders?

01:37:26 21

01:37:31 22

01: 37 :.37 23

01:37:4'624

• 8:05 25

A I can mention some, but it varied over

Page 94

time, of course; Barclays Global, which is an

index fund, would be typically there. We would

have seen Merrill Lynch Investment, Newton Asset

Management, MorJey, Deutscher Asset Management .

I'm trying to. think of The Big Soot , Scottish
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Widows, Standard Life, Ewell, Pioneer Investments.

Q Thank you. Did those reports identify

the largest shareholders with respect to Royal

Dutch?

A Yes, inasmuch as we could identify them

because of the bearer share issue.

Q Can you identify any of those

shareholders for me.

A Some in Europe and some in the U.S. In

the U.S. they would typically include ~apital

Group, Fid~lity, Putnam, State Street, Lazard and

Northern Trust. In Europe they would include ABN

Asset Management, a variety of Swiss banks, UBS

Asset Management, Credit Suisse Asset Management,

Lombard Odier, Daria Hench. Some of the French

investors; Axa, for example. The big German

investors: Deag and Deutscher Asset, of course.

It varied over time. Schroeder's was another U.K.

one that springs to mind.

Q- With r~spect to Royal Dutch as opposed

to Shell, do you recall the approximat¤ --

withdrawn. With respect to Royal Dutch, do you

recall the proportion of U.S. investors versus.40:25 25 j tontin~ntal European investors versus investors

LEGALINK, ~ ME~ILL µ:GAL SOLUTIqNS
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from the United Kingdom during the period 2002 to

2004?

MR. FERRARA: Let me ask a point of

clarification. When you're saying U.S. investors,

this witness, as I hear him, is distinguishing

between a U.S. person who bought in a non-U.S.

account overseas from a U.S. investor who

purchases in a U.S. account but happens to execute

overseas. You keep talking about a U.S. investor

without making the distinction that this witness

has made .

MR. MACFALL: That's a fair distinction,

so why don't I break it down.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Were you able to ascertain from the

Thompson report -- withdrawn. Did the Thompson

reports provide data concerning the number of U.S.

investors who purchased shares of Royal Dutch on

U.S. exchange~ du~ing your tenure at IR~

A Yes, it identified the U.S.~based

investors who were tradLng on New York Stock

Exchange in the holdings that they.had in Royal'
,

Dutch Petroleum. It would also ide'ntifythe much .

smaller number and much less Ldquid .nurnberOT ADRs .'
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of' Shell Transport and Trading that were also

available on the New York Exchange.

Q Can you provide a range with respect

to -- of ownership with respect to U.S. investors

who purchased shares of Royal Dutch by U.S.

exchanges?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: I had spoken earlier of

the 25 plus. That was our overall estimate of

U.S. investors on both exchanges, so the U.S. on

the New York Stock Exchange alone, just in Royal

Dutch, not Shell Transport and Trading, which was

only 60 percent of the Group, we could identify

the total number of shares trading in the U.S.,

and because of those, Royal Dutch was split

between Amsterdam and New York. And if my memory

serves. me right, that was 30, 40 percent of the

total, dependent on the time. That's of total

Royal Dutch, not of the Shell Group, and that's

6ne that was redticing over time dur±ng my period

in IR that I think would have fallen maybe as low

as 25 perc~nt towards the end of the peiidd, so

25 percent of Royal 'Dutch, which was 60 percent of

the Group.
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BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Now, with respect to U.S. investors

purchasing shares of Royal Dutch on foreign

exchanges, was that data reported in the Thompson

reports?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: What we could see was

that, for example, Merrill Lynch Investment

Management had bought and sold on the London

Exchange. That we could see. And what we

believed, because of our ongoing relationship with

Merrill Lynch Investment Management in the City of

London, was that those decisions were being made

in London.

What I rlon't know, nor could ever know,

was the relationship between Merrill Lynch in

London and Merrill Lynch in New York and what was

the overall decision-making process, but for

London-based shares we talked to the London :

office. Same with Goldman Sachs and Fidel~ty and

Lehman AS$et Management, almost anybody, afly:o£

the u.s....basElc:l big investors would have a.London

otfice, an<:i that' $ who we spoke to about trades in
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the London market, and then we would see the U.S.

arm when we came over.

So I don't know where the ultimate

investment decision was made, and I'm sure it was

different for each organization. Capital Group we

knew were trading in London. They were our

largest shareholder for quite a period, and

Capital Group's decision-making structure and

shareholding structure was opaque to us. We could

not necessarily identify which part of Capital was

making which decision and which -- but we knew,

broadly speaking, which of their investment

vehicles had made the purchase.

BY MR. MACFALL:

Q Based on that answer, were you unaware

of the estimate of -- withdrawn. Did Thompson's

provide any estimate of U.S. investors purchasing

shares of Royal Dutch on foreign exchanges based

on the decision-making criteria you just

described?

MR. SMITH: Objection to form.

THE WITNESS: Based on the

decision-making criteria of who was making the

call, no, thompson's could not. Thornpson's could
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